
 

Merton Council 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Commission  
 
Date: 13 March 2024 
Time: 7.15 pm 

 

Venue: Council Chamber, Merton Civic Centre 
AGENDA 

Page Number 
  
1  Apologies for absence   
 
2  Declarations of pecuniary interest   
 
3  Minutes of the previous meeting  1 - 4 
 
4  Night Time Strategy - Presentation   
 
5  Civic Pride - Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector  5 - 14 
 
6  Topic Suggestions 2024/25  15 - 22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This is a public meeting – members of the public are very welcome to attend. 

The meeting room will be open to members of the public from 7.00 p.m. 
 
For more information about the work of this and other overview and scrutiny panels, 
please telephone 020 8545 3864 or e-mail scrutiny@merton.gov.uk. Alternatively, 
visit www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny 
 
Press enquiries: communications@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3483 or 
4093 
 
Email alerts: Get notified when agendas are published 
www.merton.gov.uk/council/committee.htm?view=emailer 
 

http://www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny
mailto:communications@merton.gov.uk
http://www.merton.gov.uk/council/committee.htm?view=emailer


 

Public Information 
Attendance at meetings 
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council.  Seating in the public gallery is 
limited and offered on a first come first served basis. 
Audio/Visual recording of meetings 
The Council will film meetings held in the Council Chamber for publication on the website.  If 
you would like to film or record any meeting of the Council held in public, please read the 
Council’s policy here or contact democratic.services@merton.gov.uk for more information. 
Mobile telephones 
Please put your mobile telephone on silent whilst in the meeting. 
Access information for the Civic Centre 

 

• Nearest Tube: Morden (Northern Line) 
• Nearest train: Morden South, South 

Merton (First Capital Connect) 
• Tramlink: Morden Road or Phipps 

Bridge (via Morden Hall Park) 
• Bus routes: 80, 93, 118, 154, 157, 163, 

164, 201, 293, 413, 470, K5 
 

Further information can be found here 
Meeting access/special requirements 
The Civic Centre is accessible to people with special access requirements.  There are 
accessible toilets, lifts to meeting rooms, disabled parking bays and an induction loop system 
for people with hearing difficulties.  For further information, please contact 
democratic.services@merton.gov.uk  
Fire alarm 
If the fire alarm sounds, either intermittently or continuously, please leave the building 
immediately by the nearest available fire exit without stopping to collect belongings.  Staff will 
direct you to the exits and fire assembly point.  If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of 
staff will assist you.  The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned. 
Electronic agendas, reports and minutes 
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be found on our 
website.  To access this, click https://www.merton.gov.uk/council-and-local-democracy and 
search for the relevant committee and meeting date. 
Agendas can also be viewed online in the Borough’s libraries and on the Mod.gov paperless 
app for iPads, Android and Windows devices. 

https://www2.merton.gov.uk/Guidance%20on%20recording%20meetings%20NEW.docx
mailto:
https://www.merton.gov.uk/contact-us/visiting-the-civic-centre
mailto:democratic.services@merton.gov.uk
https://www.merton.gov.uk/council-and-local-democracy


 
Overview and Scrutiny Commission membership 
 
Councillors:  
Edward Foley (Chair) 
Mike Brunt (Vice-Chair) 
Agatha Mary Akyigyina OBE 
Laxmi Attawar 
Billy Hayes 
Usaama Kaweesa 
Paul Kohler 
Nick McLean 
Stuart Neaverson 
John Oliver 
Tony Reiss 
Substitute Members:  
Sheri-Ann Bhim 
Michael Butcher 
Stephen Mercer 
Thomas Barlow 
Anthony Fairclough 
Robert Page 

Co-opted Representatives  
Mansoor Ahmad, Parent Governor 
Representative - Secondary and Special 
Sectors 
Becky Cruise, Parent Governor 
Representative 
Dr Oona Stannard, Catholic Diocese 
Roz Cordner, Church of England Diocese 
  

Note on declarations of interest 
Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at the 
meeting.  If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the meeting room during the whole of 
the consideration of that mater and must not participate in any vote on that matter.  For further advice please 
speak with the Managing Director, South London Legal Partnership. 

What is Overview and Scrutiny? 
Overview and Scrutiny describes the way Merton’s scrutiny councillors hold the Council’s 
Executive (the Cabinet) to account to make sure that they take the right decisions for the Borough. 
Scrutiny panels also carry out reviews of Council services or issues to identify ways the Council 
can improve or develop new policy to meet the needs of local people.  From May 2008, the 
Overview & Scrutiny Commission and Panels have been restructured and the Panels renamed to 
reflect the Local Area Agreement strategic themes. 
 
Scrutiny’s work falls into four broad areas: 
 
 Call-in: If three (non-executive) councillors feel that a decision made by the Cabinet is 

inappropriate they can ‘call the decision in’ after it has been made to prevent the decision 
taking immediate effect. They can then interview the Cabinet Member or Council Officers and 
make recommendations to the decision-maker suggesting improvements. 

 Policy Reviews: The panels carry out detailed, evidence-based assessments of Council 
services or issues that affect the lives of local people. At the end of the review the panels issue 
a report setting out their findings and recommendations for improvement and present it to 
Cabinet and other partner agencies. During the reviews, panels will gather information, 
evidence and opinions from Council officers, external bodies and organisations and members 
of the public to help them understand the key issues relating to the review topic. 

 One-Off Reviews: Panels often want to have a quick, one-off review of a topic and will ask 
Council officers to come and speak to them about a particular service or issue before making 
recommendations to the Cabinet.  

 Scrutiny of Council Documents: Panels also examine key Council documents, such as the 
budget, the Business Plan and the Best Value Performance Plan. 

 
Scrutiny panels need the help of local people, partners and community groups to make sure that 
Merton delivers effective services. If you think there is something that scrutiny should look at, or 
have views on current reviews being carried out by scrutiny, let us know.  
 
For more information, please contact the Scrutiny Team on 020 8545 3864 or by e-mail on 
scrutiny@merton.gov.uk. Alternatively, visit www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny 

http://www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny


This page is intentionally left blank



All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the committee/panel.  To find out the date of the next 
meeting please check the calendar of events at your local library or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee. 

 

1 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
26 FEBRUARY 2024 
(7.15 pm - 9.05 pm) 
PRESENT: Councillor Edward Foley (in the Chair), Councillor Michael Brunt, 

Councillor Agatha Mary Akyigyina, Councillor Billy Hayes, 
Councillor Usaama Kaweesa, Councillor Paul Kohler, 
Councillor Nick McLean, Councillor Stuart Neaverson, 
Councillor John Oliver, Councillor Tony Reiss and Roz Cordner 
 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  
Zoe Gallen and Katy Saunders (Safer Merton Business Support) 
 

  
1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1) 

 
Apologies were received from co-opted Members, Mansoor Ahmed and Oona 
Stannard, and Councillor Eleanor Stringer 
  
2  DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST (Agenda Item 2) 

 
There were no declarations of pecuniary interest. 
  
  
3  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda Item 3) 

 
The minutes were agreed as a true and accurate record of the previous meeting. 
  
Matters arising: 
  
It was proposed and seconded that Members organise a working group looking at 
realigning the scrutiny panels. There were 4 votes for, 6 against.  
  
A Member queried the line ‘The Leader committed to take away the feedback about 
the request for further information to be included on the capital programme items’ – 
This line is to be clarified with the Leader. 
  
  
4  BCU COMMANDER - CRIME AND POLICING IN MERTON (Agenda Item 4) 

 
The Chair invited Detective Chief Superintendent, Clair Kelland, to provide an 
overview of the crime figures and answers submitted. 
  
Neighbourhood crime types across the borough of Merton have reduced over the 
past 12 months, including personal robbery and burglaries.  
Embedding ‘Met insights’ has seen significant success. This is an evidence-based 
approach to target prolific offenders.  
  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

http://www.merton.gov.uk/committee


 

2 

In response to questions: 
  
Cricket Green Ward Panel –Input from a younger demographic is needed.  
The Borough Commander responded that it is a struggle to increase engagement 
with younger communities. We held a ‘New Met for London’ event that was just for 
young people, and we continue to target and engage with youth groups across the 
BCU. There is a disconnect in social media choices between the police and young 
people.  
  
Merton Council is also looking at how we can broaden our reach in this area.  
The Participation and Engagement officer suggested a joint working session with 
Schools Officers about what already exists.  
  
TNO’s up – Shoplifting offences have increased. There is a slight spike in domestic 
abuse offences. Theft is up 21%. We are working with Neighbourhood Watch, 
carrying out bike marking, etc.  
  
A Commission Member shared some of the results of a survey undertaken in 
Wimbledon Park ward, with 94 out of 105 women responding that street lighting is too 
dark, and they feel unsafe and vulnerable.  
  
The women’s running club will feed back any intel on where in the borough feels 
safe/doesn’t.  
  
The Borough Commander was thanked for her attendance.  
  
  
5  SAFER MERTON - VAWG STRATEGY (Agenda Item 5) 

 
The Chair invited the Community Safety Team Manager and Domestic Violence Lead 
to provide a summary of their VAWG report.  
  
Since our last update to Commission Members, Merton has formed a partnership 
with six other south London boroughs to tackle domestic abuse perpetrators, having 
successfully secured funding for the project. The programme is designed to tackle 
domestic abuse across south London and on ensuring perpetrators stop their abusive 
behaviour. The programme also includes specialist support services for associated 
victims and survivors. 
  
The departments focus for the next 12 months includes:  
  

         Recruiting a VAWG Officer 
         Promoting Bystander training and continuing work on White Ribbon 

accreditation 
         Borough of Sport Women’s Running Club 
         Reinvigorating Ask Angela and anti-spiking kits.  
         Male Allyship campaign 
         IDVA 

Page 2



 

3 

  
In response to questions, the Head of Community Safety provided further 
information: 
  

         The 17 spaces in the refuge units feature a mixture of single female, and 
mum and children occupancy etc. We are working with our partners to 
increase capacity. 

         Annual delivery plan – this is the VAWG action plan which is monitored and 
updated by the VAWG Strategic Board. 

         Monitoring effectiveness – DA IDVA service performance is fed back. i.e. 80% 
of service users felt safer.  

         VAWG Strategy due to be reviewed this December and this will be shared 
with the Overview and Scrutiny Commission.  

         Restorative justice – took advice from MOPAC and other 32 other boroughs, 
but in terms of Domestic Violence it is not possible.  

         Para 3.1 and 3.2 – Broad strategy of 8pm lighting lower than p3. We are 
working with highways teams; some residents feel the LED is not as bright as 
it needs to be and we are looking at pockets in the borough that feel darker. 
Action: Zoe Gallen to speak to team re; is this a Merton or national standard? 

  
  
6  WORK PROGRAMME (Agenda Item 6) 

 
The work programme was agreed. 
  
  

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Overview and Scrutiny Commission  
Date: 13 March 2024  
Wards: All 

Subject:   Merton Civic Pride Fund: Supporting the 
Voluntary and Community Sector 2023/26  

Lead director:  Polly Cziok, Executive Director of Innovation and Change  
   

John Morgan, Executive Director of Adult Social Care, 
Integrated Care and Public Health  
 

Lead officer:            Keith Burns, Interim Assistant Director; Customers, Policy and 
Improvement, Innovation and Change 
Phil Howell, Interim Assistant Director for Commissioning, Adult 
Social Care, Integrated Care & Public Health  

Lead member:  Councillor Eleanor Stringer, Deputy Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Civic Pride  

Contact officer:  Amanda Roberts; Policy, Strategy and Partnerships Officer 
(020 8545 4685 / amanda.roberts@merton.gov.uk)  

Recommendations:  
1. To note the work undertaken to commission the Civic Pride Fund: Supporting 

the Voluntary and Community Sector 2023-26 and the outcome of this process. 
2. To note the delivery of the first annual round of the Merton Giving Fund, Civic 

Pride Small Grants.  
3. To note the early proposals for the second annual round of the Merton Giving 

Fund, Civic Pride Small Grants.  
 

 
1 BACKGROUND 
1.1 This report provides the Overview and Scrutiny Commission with details of 

the work to commission the council’s Civic Pride Fund: Supporting the 
Voluntary and Community Sector, the outcome of this process and an update 
on the separate “small grants” element of the fund.  

1.2 A total £4,937,941.50 has been allocated to the voluntary and community 
sector (VCS) organisations who applied for grant funding from the Merton 
Civic Pride Fund: Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector 2023/26. 
This was a positive and significant increase of 35% more funding than the 
previous Strategic Partner Programme 2019-22.   

1.3 With Nurturing Civic Pride being one of the administration’s key priorities for 
Merton, the funding programme has involved extensive engagement and 
collaborative working alongside the voluntary and community sector 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

mailto:amanda.roberts@merton.gov.uk


including benchmarking and researching into the national, regional and local 
context. Understanding how and where our residents need support reflects 
our commitment to restoring Civic Pride in our borough. We want people to 
feel proud to live, work and visit in Merton. 

1.4 It was agreed by Cabinet in September 2022 that all core funding that goes 
to the voluntary sector and the local area should come under the overarching 
umbrella of a Merton ‘Civic Pride Fund’ (CPF).  This reflects our commitment 
to investing in the local VCS infrastructure that supports our local 
communities.    

1.5 The whole commissioning process for this fund including the prospectus1 
was co-designed with the voluntary and community sector through extensive 
engagement and a Collaborative Working Group, which was led by an 
independent chair.  

1.6 The new fund had four pots of funding, which were aligned with the council’s 
‘Working Better With Communities’ framework A total of forty applications 
were received. The following applications were received for each element: 

- Services that provide help - 5 
- Services that grow strengths and capabilities - 13  
- Active, supportive communities - 20 

- An enabling system and place- 2 
1.7 The Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector fund brought together 

multiple funding pots under one single grants process. 
1.8 The aims of the 2023-26 Civic Pride Fund: Supporting the Voluntary and 

Community Sector were to:   

• Invest in and support Merton’s local voluntary and community 
infrastructure.    

• Nurture a strong sense of community and reduce inequalities.    

• Bring together preventative services that provide information, advice 
and support in the community to strengthen Merton resident’s 
physical, social, emotional, and economic resilience.  

2 DETAIL  
Main Grants Programme  

2.1 Following approval by Cabinet on 22 September 2022, the grant opened for 
applications from 3rd October and ended on the 11th of November 2022, after 
a six-week period. A total of 40 applications were received.  

2.2 To support smaller organisations through the application process online 
webinars, 1:1 support sessions and virtual workshops were facilitated by 
both Merton council and Merton connected.  FAQs were developed, and 
organisations could contact the funders at any stage with queries.  

2.3 A funding panel was convened on 29 and 30 November and 6 December 
2022 to score applications against the weighted criteria, including the ways 

 
1 Civic Pride Fund: Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector | Merton Council 

Page 6

https://www.merton.gov.uk/system/files/Civic%20Pride%20Fund%20Supporting%20the%20VCS%20Prospectus%202023-26.pdf
https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/documents/s48816/Cabinet%20Working%20Better%20with%20Communities%20report.pdf
https://www.merton.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/funding/civic-pride/voluntary


of working set out in the funding prospectus. The panel included 
representatives from the Council (including the Equalities Officer) and 
Southwest London Integrated Care Board.  

2.4 Applications for each element were scored and ranked.  Any that were found 
to fall below the minimum threshold of a weighted score of 60 or fell outside 
the scope set out in the Prospectus were automatically not eligible.   Funding 
allocations were then considered for each theme based on ranking.    

2.5 A decision report was prepared, and an Equality Analysis completed for the 
Chief Executive to approve recommendations on organisations to be funded 
on 30 December 2022. All applicants were notified by letter of the decision 
on the 5 January 2023. Funding agreements and monitoring arrangements 
were finalised in March 2023 and funding commenced from April 2023.  

2.6 Out of 40 applications, 20 organisations were successful with funding, with 
24 projects. Included at Appendix 1 is a list of organisations that were 
successful and unsuccessful following evaluation and the amount agreed for 
3 years following chief officer decision. For further details of the summary 
(including description and scoring), please refer to Appendix 1 of the 
following January 2023 Cabinet report: Report Civic Pride VCS Jan 2023.pdf 
(merton.gov.uk) 

2.7 We ensured that as part of the equality analysis, organisations that were 
eligible but low scoring have been supported by the council and Merton 
Connected to identify alternative funding opportunities.  

2.8 Following key decision approval, letters were sent to all organisations in early 
January 2023.  New funding agreements for the Supporting the Voluntary 
and Community Sector programme began on 1 April 2023, for all allocated 
funding, with ongoing grants monitoring arrangements in place.   

2.9 Key headlines of this funding include the following: 

• At almost £5 million, this combined grant programme has been the 
largest contribution to support the voluntary and community sector for 
many years.  

• With 20 organisations being funded for three years, this is the largest 
amount of organisations funded via grants. 

• Out of the 20 organisations, three organisations had not received this 
funding previously. This provides both stability within the sector, and 
opportunities to explore new projects. 

• 28% of the total funding available has gone to smaller 
groups/organisations.  

• Over £1 million to organisations that support older people. 

• Over £500,000 to organisations that support people with disabilities 
and impairments. 

• £203,962.00 to BAME Voice, a significant increase on the previous 
round of grant funding.  

  

Page 7

https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/documents/s48833/Report%20Civic%20Pride%20VCS%20Jan%202023.pdf
https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/documents/s48833/Report%20Civic%20Pride%20VCS%20Jan%202023.pdf


Small Grants Fund 
2.10 To support and develop Merton’s small, volunteer and community led 

organisations, including diversity-led groups, it was agreed that the Civic 
Pride Fund: Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector programme 
would allocate funding for smaller groups.  This is following findings from the 
Merton State of the Sector Report 2021 and the BAME Impact Report which 
indicate that smaller organisations can struggle to compete with the larger 
local organisations when applying for funding. 

2.11 As part of theme 4: An enabling system and place, it was agreed to have a 
small grants fund to the value of £150,000 over three years of the grant 
programme, using the Merton Giving funding mechanism to distribute funds 
to successful bidders.  

2.12 Merton Giving has become a very successful vehicle for distributing funds 
across the Borough, to organisations that support vulnerable communities, 
families, young people and ethnic minority communities. Merton Connected, 
who oversee Merton Giving in partnership with the Chamber of Commerce 
provide additional support to organisations applying for funding, with 
community accountancy and monitoring outcomes to ensure that grants 
meet the required outcomes and criteria.  

2.13 The first annual round of the Merton Giving Fund, Civic Pride Small Grants 
launched in October 2023.  

2.14 The specific aims of the small grants fund were to build capacity and 
resilience, address gaps in services and support available and support 
innovation and testing of new approaches and provide emergency 
assistance. This could be achieved either building on existing activity or 
launching new activity. Ideally the projects were focused during a 6-month 
period starting in December 2023. However, we recognised that the nature 
of activity may vary so the funds could be spent over a shorter or longer time 
frame (over 1 year) to best achieve the intended outcomes.  Applications for 
Emergency Assistance needed to be delivered within six months of the 
award. 

2.15 Organisations could apply for grants of up to £2,500 (grant requests could 
be accepted for slightly more than this if there is a clear business case and 
outcomes were clearly demonstrated within the application).  Priority went to 
organisations where annual turnover was less than £25,000, as this reflects 
40% of VCS organisations in Merton.   

2.16 Additional funding already earmarked for preventative activities, tackling 
inequalities and emergency assistance, brought the total pot for year one to 
£92,172.60. A portion of the total funding was specifically designated for 
support and services for adults. 

2.17 Two well attended Meet the Funder workshops were held on 12th October 
and the materials were made available from these workshops.  

2.18 Applications closed on 13th November.  Following a grants panel on 29th 
November, grants were allocated to a total of 23 organisations to a value of 
£54,209.59, with funded projects starting in early December 2023, subject to 
applicants providing all required information and documentation.   

Page 8

https://www.mertonconnected.co.uk/uploads/docs/MVSC%20State%20of%20the%20Sector%202021%20Final%20V2%20new%20logo.pdf
https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/documents/s39179/REPORT%20LBM%20BAME%20VOICE%20COVID-19%20RESILIENCE%20PROGRAMME%20190521.pdf


3 NEXT STEPS 
3.1 It is proposed that the next round of the annual small grants fund takes place 

in May 2024, and a more detailed timeline is now being worked up for this.   
Council officers will be exploring opportunities to align with other small grants 
pots, including any potential funding linked to the ‘Borough of Sport’ theme.  

3.2 Regular engagement with current Civic Pride Strategic Partners and wider 
VCS will continue to take place via the well-attended monthly Community 
Response Steering Group, which is facilitated by the council.  

4 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 
4.1 A number of engagement activities have informed this fund.    
4.2 Transforming How We Work with Communities project, and as part of this 

the listening and engagement work to shape the working better with 
communities framework.  

4.3 Your Merton engagement and findings report.   
4.4 VCS community response monthly steering group.   
4.5 Covid-19 Impact reports for people with dementia and their carers, people 

with a learning disability and their carers, people from black and minority 
ethnic communities and young people.    

4.6 Merton Connected ‘State of the Sector’ report.  
4.7 The outcomes of the Big Conversation for people with a learning disability.  
4.8 A large online engagement event facilitated by Collaborate CIC took place 

on the 27 April 2022 attended by over 50 people. At the event, initial ideas 
were sought on the principles underpinning the work, the process, the vision, 
and the proposed outcomes of the programme. Delegates were invited to 
continue to co-produce the whole programme through Collaborative Working 
Group, which met 5 times.  

4.9 The formal consultation on the prospectus was open from 21 July to 16 
August.  

4.10 Conversations with commissioners within the council and beyond have taken 
place throughout this process. The early proposals were taken to a 
commissioner’s workshop on 24 May 2022. 

5 FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 
5.1 None specific for this report. The funding available for the Civic Pride Fund 

was met within existing core budgets for the four key themes in Civic Pride 
Fund (CPF): Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector.  

6 LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 
6.1 None specific for this report.  
 
  

Page 9



7 HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 
IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 None specific for this report.   
8 CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
8.1 None specific to this report.  
9 RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
9.1 None specific for this report. 
10 APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE PUBLISHED 

WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT 

• Appendix 1: Successful and unsuccessful applicants for Civic Pride 
Funding: Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector 2023-
2026.  

11 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
1 Cabinet report – Merton Civic Pride Fund: Supporting the Voluntary and 

Community Sector 2023/26 – commissioning requirements 19/09/2022 - 
Final Cabinet report 19 September Civic Pride VCS.pdf (merton.gov.uk)   

 
2 CMT report - Merton Civic Pride Fund: Supporting the Voluntary and 

Community Sector 2023/26 - commissioning requirements 16/08/22 
 
3 CMT report - Strategic Partner Programme 2023-2026 12/05/2022   
 
4 Key Decision Report - Strategic Partner Programme 2019/22 25/02/2019 

https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=714   
 
5 Key Decision Report - Strategic Partner Programme 2019/22 18/12/2018 

https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=687   
 
6 Cabinet report – Strategic Partner Programme 2019/22 commissioning 

requirements 17/09/2018 -
https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=629   

 
7 Cabinet report – Future Funding of the Strategic Partner Programme – 

03/07/2017 - 
https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=47 

Page 10

https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/documents/s47507/Final%20Cabinet%20report%2019%20September%20Civic%20Pride%20VCS.pdf
https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=714
https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=687
https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=629
https://democracy.merton.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=47


 

   

 
Appendix One - Successful and unsuccessful applicants for Civic Pride 
Funding: Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector 2023-2026.  

1. Services that provide help: the services that provide emergency assistance 
to people in crisis and direct help to adults in need.  

Successful Applicants 
Organisation  Amount 

Requested 2023-
2026  

Funding 
Amount 2023-

2026  
Power Centre Church  £65,200.00  £38,073.00  
Commonside Community Development 
Trust  

£36,927.00  £36,927.00  

Merton Vision  £30,945.00  £30,945.00  
 
Unsuccessful Organisations 

Organisation  Amount 
Requested 2023-

2026  

Funding 
Amount 2023-

2026  
Faith in Action - Merton Homelessness 
Project  

£90,000  No funding  

Inner Strength Network   £120,000  Not eligible  
 

2. Services that grow strengths and capabilities: the services that provide 
good quality information, support and non-accredited advice, accredited advice 
and casework and specialist and/or legal representation where necessary.  

Successful Applicants 
Organisation  Amount 

Requested 2023-
2026  

Funding Amount 
2023-2026  

Age UK Merton  £1,557,087.07  £530,581.20  
Association for Polish Family  £163,000.00  £163,000.00  
Citizens Advice Merton and Lambeth   £1,616,504.00  £1,293,203.20  
Commonside Community Development 
Trust  

£98,439.00  £78,751.20  

Merton Centre for Independent Living  £148,248.00  £148,248.00  
Merton Mencap (AF1)  £68,466.00  £54,772.80  
Merton Vision (AF2)  £73,882.00  £59,105.60  
South West London Law Centres  £228,724.00  £228,724.00  
Springfield Advice and Law Centre  £190,300.00  £190,300.00  
Wimbledon Guild  £148,293.00  £148,293.00  

 
  

Page 11



 

   

Unsuccessful Organisations 
Organisation  Amount 

Requested 2023-
2026  

Funding 
Amount 2023-

2026  
Alzheimer’s Society  £153,494.00  No eligible  
Home-Start Merton  £58,980.00  Not eligible  
South London Refugee Association  £134,259.59  No funding  

 
3. Active, supportive communities: the services that co-design support and 

solutions with people and communities to help grow their relationships and 
connections and increase their level of activity.  This will include low level 
preventative activities and Healthwatch Merton. 

Successful Applicants 
Organisation  Amount 

Requested 2023-
2026  

Funding Amount 
2023-2026  

AFC Wimbledon Foundation  £211,150.00  £0*2 
Age UK Merton (AF1)  £314,029.41  £0* 
Attic Theatre Company  £38,514.00  £38,514.00  
Commonside Community Development 
Trust (AF1)  

£142,574.00  £142,574.00  

Friends In Helier  £178,000.00  £150,410.00  
The Merton and Morden Guild of Social 
Service  

£144,500.00  £122,102.50  

Merton Community Transport  £52,031.03  £43,966.22  
Merton Mencap  £68,520.00  £68,520.00  
Merton Mencap (AF2)  £56,706.00  £0* 
Merton Mencap (AF3)  £48,300.00  £0* 
Merton Mencap (AF4)  £41,865.00  £0* 
Merton Vision  £182,664.00  £154,351.08  
North East Mitcham Community 
Association  

£40,536.57 £34,253.38  

Wimbledon Guild (AF1)  £102,696.00  £0* 
Merton Connected (AF1)  £375,000.00  £375,000.00  

   
  

 
2 * As preventative activities had a large number of strong applications, far exceeding the funding 
available, the panel made the decision to discuss alternative funding arrangements with four 
organisations. These organisations have agreed to withdraw their funding applications and are in 
ongoing conversations with the Council to confirm future opportunities. This has enabled a wide a 
reach as possible for preventative activities, making best use of available funding.   

Page 12



 

   

Unsuccessful Organisations  
Organisation  Amount 

Requested 2023-
2026  

Funding 
Amount 2023-

2026  
Accoutre Centre for Learning  £30,000  Not eligible  
Ethnic Minority Centre Ltd  £49,989.00  No funding  
South Mitcham Community Association  £122,938.00  No funding  
Unique Talent CIC  £370,740.00  No funding  
Jigsaw4u  £132,107.00  Not eligible  

 
4. An enabling system and place: the services that help to support an enabling 

system and place.  This will include voluntary and community sector 
infrastructure support and the provision of small grants. 

Successful Applicants 
Organisation  Funding Amount 

Requested 2023-
2026  

Funding Amount 
2023-2026  

BAME VOICE  £203,962.00  £203,962.00  
Merton Connected  £807,300.00  £603,338.00  

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 1 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Commission Work 
Programme 2023/24  

 
This table sets out the draft Overview and Scrutiny Commission’s Work Programme for 2023/24 following discussions at the topic 
workshop on 7 June 2023.  
 
The work programme will be considered at every meeting of the Commission to enable it to respond to issues of concern or to 
request new pre-decision items ahead of their consideration by Cabinet/Council. 
 
Chair: Cllr Edward Foley 
Vice-chair: Cllr Mike Brunt 
 
Scrutiny Support 
For further information on the work programme of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission please contact: -  
Rosie McKeever, Scrutiny Officer 
Tel: 020 8545 4035; Email: rosie.mckeever@merton.gov.uk 
 

For more information about overview and scrutiny at LB Merton, please visit www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny 
 
 

 

 

 

 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6



 
 

 2 

Meeting date: 5 July 2023 (Deadline for papers: 5pm, 26 June 2023) 

Item/issue How Lead member and/or lead 
officer 

Intended outcomes 

Executive Director 
introductions 
  

Verbal update with 
Q&A 

Dan Jones (ED Environment, 
Civic Pride and Climate) 
Polly Cziok (ED Innovation & 
Change) 
Asad Mushtaq (ED Finance 
& Digital) 

To understand current 
priorities in relation to 
Panel work programme 

Scrutiny Annual Report Report Cllr Ed Foley, Chair of 
Overview & Scrutiny 
Commission 

 

Scrutiny Member Survey Report Cllr Ed Foley, Chair of 
Overview & Scrutiny 
Commission 

 

Identify questions for the 
Borough Commander 
 

Discussion Cllr Ed Foley, Chair of 
Overview & Scrutiny 
Commission 

Plan line of questioning for 
6 September meeting 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Commission work 
programme 23/24 
 

Report Cllr Ed Foley Chair of 
Overview & Scrutiny 
Commission 

Discuss and approve work 
programme and re-
establishment of the FMTG 

 

 

 

 

P
age 16



 
 

 3 

Meeting date: 6 September 2022 (Deadline for papers: 5pm, 28 August 2022) 

Item/issue How Lead member and/or lead 
officer 

Intended outcomes 

Questions to the Leader of 
the Council - priorities and 
challenges for 2023/24 
  

Verbal update with 
Q&A 

Cllr Ross Garrod, Leader of 
the Council;  
 

To understand current 
priorities in relation to 
Panel work programme 

BCU Commander – crime 
and policing in Merton 

Report and in-
depth discussion 

BCU Commander To hold BCU Commander 
to account on crime and 
disorder. (Include 
Community Policing) 
 

Safer Merton - Antisocial 
Behaviour 

Report Community Safety Team, 
Katy Saunders, Megan 
Hatton 

 

Report to focus on ASB 
and Knife Crime 
(Include graffiti and 
vandalism) 

Scrutiny Member Survey Report Cllr Edward Foley Results of survey 

Work programme 2023/24 Written report Rosie McKeever, Scrutiny 
Officer 

To agree the work 
programme. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 17



 
 

 4 

Meeting date: 29 November 2023 (Deadline for papers: 5pm, 20 November 2023)  

Item/issue How Lead member and/or lead 
officer 

Intended outcomes 

Business Plan - budget 
update  

Report  Asad Mushtaq, Executive 
Director of Finance & Digital 

 

Cabinet Member priorities  
 

Report Cllr Eleanor Stringer, Cabinet 
Member for Civic Pride 
Cllr Billy Christie, Cabinet 
Member Finance and 
Corporate Services 

 

Customer Service and the 
Council Website  
 

 Sean Cunniffe, Head of 
Customer Contact 

 

Work programme 2023/24 Written report Rosie McKeever, Scrutiny 
Officer 

To agree the work 
programme 

  
 

P
age 18



 
 

 5 

Meeting date: 31 January 2024 (Deadline for papers: 5pm, 22 January 2024)  

Item/issue How Lead member and/or lead 
officer 

Intended outcomes 

Business Plan Update – 
budget scrutiny  

Report – common 
pack for Panels and 
Commission  
 

Asad Mushtaq, Executive 
Director of Finance & Digital 

To report to Cabinet on 
budget scrutiny 
 

Scrutiny of the Business 
Plan; comments and 
recommendations from the 
overview and scrutiny 
panels 

Report Asad Mushtaq, Executive 
Director of Finance & Digital 

To send comments and 
recommendations from the 
overview and scrutiny 
panels to Cabinet  

Equality, Diversity & 
Inclusion strategy 
 

Report Susan Botros, Interim 
Equalities & Community 
Cohesion Lead 

 

Identify questions for the 
Borough Commander 
 

Discussion Cllr Ed Foley Chair of 
Overview & Scrutiny 
Commission 

Plan line of questioning for 
meeting on 26 February 

Work programme 2023/24 Written report Rosie McKeever, Scrutiny 
Officer 

To agree the work 
programme. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 19



 
 

 6 

Meeting date: 26 February 2024 (Deadline for papers: 5pm, 16 February 2024)  

Item/issue How Lead member and/or lead 
officer 

Intended outcomes 

BCU Commander – crime 
and policing in Merton 

Report  BCU Commander To hold BCU Commander 
to account on crime and 
disorder. (Include 
Community Policing) 
 

Safer Merton - VAWG 
Strategy / Safety of women 
& girls 
 

Report Safer Merton  Include lighting 

Work programme 2023/24 Written report Rosie McKeever, Scrutiny 
Officer 

To agree the work 
programme 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 20



 
 

 7 

Meeting date: 13 March 2024 (Deadline for papers: 5pm, 4 March 2024) 

Item/issue How Lead member and/or lead 
officer 

Intended outcomes 

Delivery of the Civic Pride 
fund 
 

 Cllr Eleanor Stringer, 
Cabinet Member for Civic 
Pride, Keith Burns 

Voluntary Sector focus 

Night-time Strategy Report  Sarah Xavier  

Planning the Commission's 
2024/25 work programme 
 

Report Cllr Ed Foley Chair of 
Overview & Scrutiny 
Commission 

To review 2023/24 and 
suggest ideas for 2024/25 

 
 
 
MOVED TO NEXT YEAR  
 
People and Culture Plan Report Peter Little, Head of 

Organisational Development 
The People and Culture 
Plan was put on hold last 
year pending the work on 
values and on the 
development of the new 
change programme. No 
update as yet.  

Decision Making: Review 
the current structure of the 
scrutiny panels and 
restructure to re-align with 
new directors.  
 

Report Scrutiny Team Moved due to scrutiny 
capacity 

 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Civic Pride - Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector
	Subject:  	Merton Civic Pride Fund: Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector 2023/26
	1	BACKGROUND
	1.1	This report provides the Overview and Scrutiny Commission with details of the work to commission the council’s Civic Pride Fund: Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector, the outcome of this process and an update on the separate “small grants” element of the fund.
	1.2	A total £4,937,941.50 has been allocated to the voluntary and community sector (VCS) organisations who applied for grant funding from the Merton Civic Pride Fund: Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector 2023/26. This was a positive and significant increase of 35% more funding than the previous Strategic Partner Programme 2019-22.
	1.3	With Nurturing Civic Pride being one of the administration’s key priorities for Merton, the funding programme has involved extensive engagement and collaborative working alongside the voluntary and community sector including benchmarking and researching into the national, regional and local context. Understanding how and where our residents need support reflects our commitment to restoring Civic Pride in our borough. We want people to feel proud to live, work and visit in Merton.
	1.4	It was agreed by Cabinet in September 2022 that all core funding that goes to the voluntary sector and the local area should come under the overarching umbrella of a Merton ‘Civic Pride Fund’ (CPF).  This reflects our commitment to investing in the local VCS infrastructure that supports our local communities.
	1.5	The whole commissioning process for this fund including the prospectus� Civic Pride Fund: Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector | Merton Council
 was co-designed with the voluntary and community sector through extensive engagement and a Collaborative Working Group, which was led by an independent chair.
	1.6	The new fund had four pots of funding, which were aligned with the council’s ‘Working Better With Communities’ framework A total of forty applications were received. The following applications were received for each element:
	-	Services that provide help - 5
	-	Services that grow strengths and capabilities - 13
	-	Active, supportive communities - 20
	-	An enabling system and place- 2
	1.7	The Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector fund brought together multiple funding pots under one single grants process.
	1.8	The aims of the 2023-26 Civic Pride Fund: Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector were to:
		Invest in and support Merton’s local voluntary and community infrastructure.
		Nurture a strong sense of community and reduce inequalities.
		Bring together preventative services that provide information, advice and support in the community to strengthen Merton resident’s physical, social, emotional, and economic resilience.

	2	DETAIL
	Main Grants Programme
	2.1	Following approval by Cabinet on 22 September 2022, the grant opened for applications from 3rd October and ended on the 11th of November 2022, after a six-week period. A total of 40 applications were received.
	2.2	To support smaller organisations through the application process online webinars, 1:1 support sessions and virtual workshops were facilitated by both Merton council and Merton connected.  FAQs were developed, and organisations could contact the funders at any stage with queries.
	2.3	A funding panel was convened on 29 and 30 November and 6 December 2022 to score applications against the weighted criteria, including the ways of working set out in the funding prospectus. The panel included representatives from the Council (including the Equalities Officer) and Southwest London Integrated Care Board.
	2.4	Applications for each element were scored and ranked.  Any that were found to fall below the minimum threshold of a weighted score of 60 or fell outside the scope set out in the Prospectus were automatically not eligible.   Funding allocations were then considered for each theme based on ranking.
	2.5	A decision report was prepared, and an Equality Analysis completed for the Chief Executive to approve recommendations on organisations to be funded on 30 December 2022. All applicants were notified by letter of the decision on the 5 January 2023. Funding agreements and monitoring arrangements were finalised in March 2023 and funding commenced from April 2023.
	2.6	Out of 40 applications, 20 organisations were successful with funding, with 24 projects. Included at Appendix 1 is a list of organisations that were successful and unsuccessful following evaluation and the amount agreed for 3 years following chief officer decision. For further details of the summary (including description and scoring), please refer to Appendix 1 of the following January 2023 Cabinet report: Report Civic Pride VCS Jan 2023.pdf (merton.gov.uk)
	2.7	We ensured that as part of the equality analysis, organisations that were eligible but low scoring have been supported by the council and Merton Connected to identify alternative funding opportunities.
	2.8	Following key decision approval, letters were sent to all organisations in early January 2023.  New funding agreements for the Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector programme began on 1 April 2023, for all allocated funding, with ongoing grants monitoring arrangements in place.
	2.9	Key headlines of this funding include the following:
		At almost £5 million, this combined grant programme has been the largest contribution to support the voluntary and community sector for many years.
		With 20 organisations being funded for three years, this is the largest amount of organisations funded via grants.
		Out of the 20 organisations, three organisations had not received this funding previously. This provides both stability within the sector, and opportunities to explore new projects.
		28% of the total funding available has gone to smaller groups/organisations.
		Over £1 million to organisations that support older people.
		Over £500,000 to organisations that support people with disabilities and impairments.
		£203,962.00 to BAME Voice, a significant increase on the previous round of grant funding.
	Small Grants Fund
	2.10	To support and develop Merton’s small, volunteer and community led organisations, including diversity-led groups, it was agreed that the Civic Pride Fund: Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector programme would allocate funding for smaller groups.  This is following findings from the Merton State of the Sector Report 2021 and the BAME Impact Report which indicate that smaller organisations can struggle to compete with the larger local organisations when applying for funding.
	2.11	As part of theme 4: An enabling system and place, it was agreed to have a small grants fund to the value of £150,000 over three years of the grant programme, using the Merton Giving funding mechanism to distribute funds to successful bidders.
	2.12	Merton Giving has become a very successful vehicle for distributing funds across the Borough, to organisations that support vulnerable communities, families, young people and ethnic minority communities. Merton Connected, who oversee Merton Giving in partnership with the Chamber of Commerce provide additional support to organisations applying for funding, with community accountancy and monitoring outcomes to ensure that grants meet the required outcomes and criteria.
	2.13	The first annual round of the Merton Giving Fund, Civic Pride Small Grants launched in October 2023.
	2.14	The specific aims of the small grants fund were to build capacity and resilience, address gaps in services and support available and support innovation and testing of new approaches and provide emergency assistance. This could be achieved either building on existing activity or launching new activity. Ideally the projects were focused during a 6-month period starting in December 2023. However, we recognised that the nature of activity may vary so the funds could be spent over a shorter or longer time frame (over 1 year) to best achieve the intended outcomes.  Applications for Emergency Assistance needed to be delivered within six months of the award.
	2.15	Organisations could apply for grants of up to £2,500 (grant requests could be accepted for slightly more than this if there is a clear business case and outcomes were clearly demonstrated within the application).  Priority went to organisations where annual turnover was less than £25,000, as this reflects 40% of VCS organisations in Merton.
	2.16	Additional funding already earmarked for preventative activities, tackling inequalities and emergency assistance, brought the total pot for year one to £92,172.60. A portion of the total funding was specifically designated for support and services for adults.
	2.17	Two well attended Meet the Funder workshops were held on 12th October and the materials were made available from these workshops.
	2.18	Applications closed on 13th November.  Following a grants panel on 29th November, grants were allocated to a total of 23 organisations to a value of £54,209.59, with funded projects starting in early December 2023, subject to applicants providing all required information and documentation.

	3	Next Steps
	3.1	It is proposed that the next round of the annual small grants fund takes place in May 2024, and a more detailed timeline is now being worked up for this.   Council officers will be exploring opportunities to align with other small grants pots, including any potential funding linked to the ‘Borough of Sport’ theme.
	3.2	Regular engagement with current Civic Pride Strategic Partners and wider VCS will continue to take place via the well-attended monthly Community Response Steering Group, which is facilitated by the council.

	4	Consultation undertaken or proposed
	4.1	A number of engagement activities have informed this fund.
	4.2	Transforming How We Work with Communities project, and as part of this the listening and engagement work to shape the working better with communities framework.
	4.3	Your Merton engagement and findings report.
	4.4	VCS community response monthly steering group.
	4.5	Covid-19 Impact reports for people with dementia and their carers, people with a learning disability and their carers, people from black and minority ethnic communities and young people.
	4.6	Merton Connected ‘State of the Sector’ report.
	4.7	The outcomes of the Big Conversation for people with a learning disability.
	4.8	A large online engagement event facilitated by Collaborate CIC took place on the 27 April 2022 attended by over 50 people. At the event, initial ideas were sought on the principles underpinning the work, the process, the vision, and the proposed outcomes of the programme. Delegates were invited to continue to co-produce the whole programme through Collaborative Working Group, which met 5 times.
	4.9	The formal consultation on the prospectus was open from 21 July to 16 August.
	4.10	Conversations with commissioners within the council and beyond have taken place throughout this process. The early proposals were taken to a commissioner’s workshop on 24 May 2022.

	5	Financial, resource and property implications
	5.1	None specific for this report. The funding available for the Civic Pride Fund was met within existing core budgets for the four key themes in Civic Pride Fund (CPF): Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector.

	6	LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS
	6.1	None specific for this report.

	7	HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION IMPLICATIONS
	7.1	None specific for this report.

	8	CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
	8.1	None specific to this report.

	9	RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
	9.1	None specific for this report.

	10	Appendices – the following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the report
		Appendix 1: Successful and unsuccessful applicants for Civic Pride Funding: Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector 2023-2026.

	11	Background papeRS
	Appendix One - Successful and unsuccessful applicants for Civic Pride Funding: Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector 2023-2026.
	1.	Services that provide help: the services that provide emergency assistance to people in crisis and direct help to adults in need.
	Successful Applicants
	Unsuccessful Organisations
	2.	Services that grow strengths and capabilities: the services that provide good quality information, support and non-accredited advice, accredited advice and casework and specialist and/or legal representation where necessary.
	Successful Applicants
	Unsuccessful Organisations
	3.	Active, supportive communities: the services that co-design support and solutions with people and communities to help grow their relationships and connections and increase their level of activity.  This will include low level preventative activities and Healthwatch Merton.
	Successful Applicants
	Unsuccessful Organisations
	4.	An enabling system and place: the services that help to support an enabling system and place.  This will include voluntary and community sector infrastructure support and the provision of small grants.
	Successful Applicants



	6 Topic Suggestions 2024/25
	Scrutiny Support
	Meeting date: 5 July 2023 (Deadline for papers: 5pm, 26 June 2023)
	Meeting date: 31 January 2024 (Deadline for papers: 5pm, 22 January 2024)
	Meeting date: 13 March 2024 (Deadline for papers: 5pm, 4 March 2024)


